Flight Dynamics Support Services Procurement
Draft RFP NNG08234094J
Questions and Answers, Part 3
Question 20:

Draft RFP page 82, 4th paragraph and page 106 last paragraph - These paragraphs seem to imply that a staffing plan is required to assess the offeror's concept for staffing the FDSS contract for meeting the functional and workload requirements in a timely manner.  It seems that the offeror does not have to offer any resumes for any key personnel as part of its staffing plan because most of the incumbent personnel could be available for transition after the contract award.  Please clarify if any resume for a key personnel, such as the Program Manager, is required as part of the staffing plan.
No resumes or key personnel are required by the FDSS DRFP.
Question 21:

Page 71, Table, Mission Suitability Volume, row (a) - What is the percent goal for having an SDB subcontractor included in the FDSS offer?  Is a subcontractor plan required for supporting all subcontract arrangements proposed in the FDSS offer?
Revised L.14(b)(1) Small disadvantaged business participation program has been removed as prescribed by FAR 19.1202-2 (b)(1).
Question 22:
Cost Exhibits - Would the Government cover the costs (ODCs) of obtaining security clearances for the contractor personnel assigned to the FDSS contract?
The DRFP requires that offerors propose their methodology for compliance with the DD254. The offeror is responsible for including narrative specifying its plan for compliance with the DD254. The Government will review this plan for acceptability; the Government intends to cover all costs that are allowable, allocable, and reasonable under this contract.

Question 23:
Page 101 Paragraph M.1 - Please provide incumbent rate and seniority information or some related metric(s) so that we may comply with Criteria M-1 and not reduce incumbent salaries or benefits. If this data is not provided, how will the government adjust the proposed cost to reflect incumbent salaries. The requested survey data and associated rates while establishing the market for hiring may not be consistent with current incumbent salaries, benefits and qualifications. Per page 17 of the 5/15/2008 NASA Cost Realism Handbook, paragraph b(2) --Proposed Retention of Incumbent Personnel. “The Government should make an effort to communicate as much incumbent compensation information as possible in the solicitation document.”
The Government will not be providing incumbent rate information for this procurement. In the event probable cost adjustments are made by the Government for incumbent capture there will not be a corresponding Mission Suitability weakness.
Question 24

Exhibit 15. Page 11. Paragraph C.2.a. - Does the contractor provide all of the hardware for the MOC? To price this we would have to complete a design. Please provide an equipment list or let us assume for the purposes of this RTO that the equipment is GFE or the equipment and integration and test are part of another RTO. For a cost of doing business assessment, plug ODC numbers could be provided for the application of offeror rates.
Exhibit 15 RTO 2 Paragraph C.2 added sentence, "For the purposes of bidding RTOs, offerors shall assume that all FDGDS hardware is GFE."
Question 25

Page 110. Paragraph M.4.b. - Is there a ‘structured approach’ for the Mission Suitability Point Score adjustment? How will the cost realism assessment/adjustment impact the scoring of the RTO and overall mission suitability score?
The Mission Suitability Point Score adjustment language has been removed from the RFP and M.4(b) has been revised to read, " The SSA will also be provided with RTO probable cost adjustment percentage amounts and any Mission Suitability strengths and weaknesses assessed in response to the RTO exhibits. However, the total proposed and probable RTO CPAF amount will not be shown to the SSA." The Government will not make a Mission Suitability Point Score adjustment for any cost realism adjustments made during the cost evaluation. However, probable cost adjustments may result in a Mission Suitability weakness.
Question 26
Page 94. Paragraph L.17(j). The use of the requested ‘cost of doing business’ information does not appear in the evaluation criteria. How will it be used?

The data in the requested Exhibit 6 would seems to discourage investment in technology and automation in that it would result in a higher cost per labor hour, but does not recognize increases in efficiency or throughput. Suggest that the indirect loading on direct labor be used instead or that the exhibit be deleted.
The Government is deleting Exhibit 6 from the Draft RFP.
Question 27
Page 92 Paragraph. L.17 (i) - Some of the analysis will require the use of Government developed software which cannot be purchased for contractor use. Will the Government developed software by provided GFE to the contractor? In order to price the equipment necessary to run the government developed software, we need the system requirements for the operation of this software specified. Alternatively, with this data we can determine in the GFE hardware is suitable which would require the work to be done on-site at GSFC. Another alternative would be for this software and associated equipment to be GFE.
L.17 (i) Added "For the purposes of bidding RTOs, offerors shall assume all Government software and respective hardware required to run that software are GFE."
Question 28
Page 94. Paragraph L.17.(l) ODC’s - What hardware capability is required to run the GSFC developed software analysis programs at off-site location(s)? Please provide a list of current GFE software that will be used for off-site analysis and its hosting (processor, memory, O/S) requirements.
L.17(l) All FDSS developed non-flight software can be run on standard PCs with Windows XP, 3 GHz CPU, 1 GB RAM, and 20 GB hard drives.

Question 29
Page 88. Paragraph (b) Government Pricing Model - Please provide some more details on the breakdown of the labor hr effort by WBS elements. This information is needed to allocate space for the off-site staff and to allocate the staff amongst the team.
The Government Pricing Model contains hours for pricing only; the GPM hours are not intended to reflect allocation of labor categories.
Question 30

Page 88. Paragraph (b) and (e) Government Pricing Model and Indirect Ceiling Rates - In order to provide adequate apace and determine off-site rates, are the estimated 37 off-site analyst positions to be filled on day one of the contract? Please provide the expected phasing for off-site support.
The Government plans on issuing all analysis Task Orders on Day 1 of the Contract.
Question 31

Page 71 Para L.14 Page count - Given that there are more than 30 ‘Level 3” WBS elements in the SOW and you have requested that each be addressed in Volume II, the level of detail specified on page 78 to address them and the scoring weight distribution would seem to require a larger page allocation.
L.14(B) Mission Suitability Page Count revised to 90 pages.
Question 32

Page 109-110, M.4: “The Government will use proposed ceilings in Clause B.11, Limitation of Indirect Costs, in determining the total contract probable cost (Government Pricing Model Exhibit 1B)” and “A cost realism analysis will also be performed on the overall cost proposed for the Representative Task Orders (RTOs). The Government will not use proposed ceilings in Clause B.11” --- There seems to be a contradiction- Is government planning on using proposed ceilings for Cost Realism and probable cost both for Government Pricing Model and RTOs? If not what rates will be used to establish probable cost for the RTO’s?

The Government will use the proposed ceilings in clause B.11 in determining the probable cost over the contract period of performance (Government Pricing Model Exhibit 1B).
The Government will not use the proposed ceilings in clause B.11 in determining the probable cost of the RTOs.

The Mission Suitability Point Score adjustment language has been removed from the RFP and M.4(b) has been revised to read, " The SSA will also be provided with RTO probable cost adjustment percentage amounts and any Mission Suitability strengths and weaknesses assessed in response to the RTO exhibits. However, the total proposed and probable RTO CPAF amount will not be shown to the SSA." The Government will not make a Mission Suitability Point Score adjustment for any cost realism adjustments made during the cost evaluation. However, probable cost adjustments may result in a Mission Suitability weakness.
Question 33

Pg 4 B1 Deliverables schedule. Are these business or calendar days?
Clause B.1 revised to clarify due dates.

Question 34

Pg 5 B.2 (e)  ‘.. exceed 0% of the original maximum amount’. Is the 0% a TBD?
No, the 0% is not a TBD.
Question 35

Pg 7 B.7 (a) ‘…premium does not exceed $0, or’. Is the $0 a TBD?
No, the $0 is not a TBD.
Question 36

Pg 14 E.4 No block is indicated. Does FDSS have a preferred quality standard?
E.4 Deleted "[If more than one standard is listed, the offeror shall indicate its selection by checking the appropriate block.]"  

When a task order is issued, it will specify which E.4 higher level quality standard applies.
Question 37

Pg 38 H.14 Attachment K enhancements. If these proposed enhancements become contract requirements, how is this reconciled against the task order structure? Some enhancements may be specific to a particular task order and can’t be implemented until the appropriate task order is released. Alternately, it may not be possible to implement contract wide enhancements until a sufficient number of task orders have been released.
Enhancements will be incorporated into the contract and applied to the pertinent Task Orders.
Question 38

Pg 77 Are the acronym lists included in the page counts?
Yes
Question 39

Should the vendor assume "business" days where calendar days are not specified for deliverables?
Clause B.1 revised to clarify due dates.

Question 40

I.12 Since this procurement is a Small Business set aside, is the SF295 still required? 
Clause I.12 Small Business Subcontracting Reporting (1852.219-75) removed as prescribed by FAR 19.708(b).
Question 41

SOW 2.3.2 & 3.2.7 states "no classified work is required to be performed in the contractor facility"; however DD254 Block 1b reflects that the contractor's facility needs to store data at the TOP SECRET level. Please clarify.
Attachment D: DD254 revised to reflect no requirement for the contractor's facility to store classified data.
Question 42 

M.4 states that the SSA will be provided with RTO Mission Suitability Point Score adjustment but not the total proposed and probable RTO CPAF amount. Does the Government plan to adjust Mission Suitability Point Score based upon cost realism analysis / should costing? If so, what is the basis or scale for the Point Score adjustment?
The Mission Suitability Point Score adjustment language has been removed from the RFP and M.4(b) has been revised to read, " The SSA will also be provided with RTO probable cost adjustment percentage amounts and any Mission Suitability strengths and weaknesses assessed in response to the RTO exhibits. However, the total proposed and probable RTO CPAF amount will not be shown to the SSA." The Government will not make a Mission Suitability Point Score adjustment for any cost realism adjustments made during the cost evaluation. However, probable cost adjustments may result in a Mission Suitability weakness.
Question 43

SOW for RTO 1 states that: "HNE consists of two three-axis stabilized nadir-pointing spacecraft (HNE-1 and HNE-2) that will perform all attitude determination and control functions autonomously onboard and perform coincident imaging in support of earth science as part of the Earth Observation System (EOS)." However, there is no mention of ground attitude support in the SOW. Is ground attitude support required for the HNE mission? Is attitude sensor calibration support required? 

SOW sections 3.1.4 and 3.2.3 both refer to ground attitude support. Exhibit 15 RTO 1, however, does not require ground attitude support.

Question 44

Exhibit 15 RTO 1 - In the section describing simulation and operational planning preparation, can the government please clarify what is meant by the term "and the like" for the materials that will be produced.
Exhibit 15 RTO 1 Section E last sentence revised to read, "These materials will include operations handbooks, procedures, operational scripts and will be documented in deliverables D5-D7."
Question 45
Exhibit 15 RTO 2 - The SOW references a spinning spacecraft for the Hypothetical Deep Space (HDS) mission. Will the spacecraft have any de-spun mode of operation?
Exhibit 15 RTO 2 Section I sentence revised to read, "HDS will be a spin-axis stabilized spacecraft with a 6 thruster complement used for both trajectory and attitude maneuvers, with a three-axis stabilized mode for landing only."
Question 46
Exhibit 15 RTO 2 Can the government expand on what is meant by End-of-Mission Tools? 
Exhibit 15 RTO 2 Section D removed sentence, “Such tools may include, but are not limited to, specialized tools for launch and early orbit support, end-of-mission tools, and other specialized flight dynamics functions not performed in the MOC or FDF."
Question 47
Exhibit 15 RTO 2 - Is GEONS intended to perform fully autonomous maneuver planning for the HDS Mission? 
No. GEONS is used for onboard navigation only, not maneuver planning.
Question 48
Exhibit 15 RTO 2 - Will there be GEONS software development performed under this task?

No. GEONS software development is not to be included in RTO 2. GEONS software development is included under RTO 3.
Question 49
Exhibit 15 RTO 2 - Does the term "implement" imply that there will be Flight Dynamics Ground Data System (FDGDS) software development performed under this task?

RTO 2.Section C.2 - FDGDS software development is included as part of RTO 2. Revised 1st sentence “implement” to “develop and implement."
Question 50
Exhibit 15 RTO 2 - Will there be Mission Specific Dynamics Tool development performed under this task?

Yes. RTO 2 includes Mission specific tool development.
Question 51
Exhibit 15 RTO 2 - Will there be civil servant support performing any work items listed under this task? 
For the purposes of bidding the RTOs, offerors shall assume none of the tasks are performed by civil servants.
Question 52
Exhibit 15 RTO 2 - Will the HDS Mission spacecraft carry a transponder?
Yes. HDS will receive coherent tracking from TDRS and DSN.

Question 53
Exhibit 15 RTO 3 - Code repositories are listed as both Government Furnished Property (GFP) and contractor supplied. Which is correct?

RTO 3. Section 1 2nd to last paragraph lists necessary support functions including code repository. Added statement “Code repositories shall be hosted onsite on GFE.”
Question 54
Exhibit 15 RTO 3 - Can the government please make the Molinsky paper referenced in footnote 8 (Molinsky, J. M. “Flow Modelling of the Galaxy XII Dual Mode Bipropellant Propulsion SubSystem,”   40th AIAA/ASME/SAE/ASEE Joint Propulsion Conference and Exhibit. Fort Lauderdale, Florida, July, 2004) available?
Yes, added to the FDSS Bidder's Library.
Question 55
Exhibit 15 RTO 3 - Can the government please make the technical paper for a description of the decentralized estimation architecture to be implemented in GEONS available? (J. R. Carpenter, Decentralized Control of Satellite Formations, International Journal of Robust and Nonlinear Control, 12:141-161, 2002.)
Yes, added to the FDSS Bidder's Library.
Question 56

In the answer to question 19 the Government would allow a maximum of 2 or 3 categories with a minimum of 30% or 40% percent effort per category to be listed in Exhibits 2A thru 2D.  However, in many cases labor categories with 25 or more years of experience are used on many tasks to provide direction to less experienced categories at effort levels which maybe less than 30%.  We are also concerned that using too few labor categories in Exhibit 2 will create gaps in the labor rates on the contract, since only those categories listed in Exhibit 2 can be included in Attachment B. With this in mind we would recommend a minimum of 10% in the composite mix with a maximum number of categories of 6.  That way offerors could more accurately reflect the work proposed.

The Government believes that it has adequately addressed this issue and will not be changing the percentages and/or number of labor category constraints.
Reference: 
Federal Business Opportunities (http://www.fbo.gov); Solicitation NNG08234094R: "Responses to RFP Questions Part 2," Question 19 (posted December 9, 2008).
Question 57

What is the Government position on the ability of contractors currently supporting FDF activities to participate in the FDSS procurement?  How will NASA ensure a level procurement playing field related to current FDF contractor access to FDSS non-public information and involvement in FDSS requirements development?  In addition to requiring the firewalling of contractor personnel with access to Non-Public FDSS related information from participation on FDSS proposal teams, is NASA requiring other OCI mitigation steps to protect the integrity of the FDSS procurement against other potential OCI (e.g. Biased Ground rules)?
The Government's position is to avoid, neutralize or mitigate any unfair competitive advantage that may arise in the RFP process. The Government recognizes that there are three paramount OCI concerns as follows: Biased Ground Rules, Impaired Objectivity, and Unequal Access to Information.

The Government has avoided Biased Ground Rules by not involving any contractor personnel in the development of the RFP.

The Government has avoided Impaired Objectivity by not involving any contractor personnel in the proposal evaluation process or subsequent contract administration.

The Government has neutralized Unequal Access to Information as follows:
FAR 9.505(b) cites two kinds of information that can provide an offeror an unfair competitive advantage: proprietary information obtained from the Government without proper authorization, and source selection information. The Government does not intend to distribute contractor or Government proprietary information or source selection information to any offerors without an approved Organizational Conflict of Interest (OCI) Mitigation Plan.

However, the regulation recognizes that “conflicts may arise in situations not expressly covered in this section 9.505. As such, each individual contracting situation should be examined on the basis of its particular facts and the nature of the proposed contract." The Government will address each potential OCI issue as needed given the individual facts and in a manner designed to avoid, neutralize, or mitigate OCIs.

Please be aware that the following OCI situation has surfaced and been neutralized as follows:

In November 2008, NASA became aware of a possible Organizational Conflict of Interest (OCI) with a potential offeror, United Space Alliance (USA). The nature of this conflict involves the potential offeror's access to non-public information when supporting Lunar Reconnaissance Orbiter (LRO) activities. The concern is that this potential conflict could provide the potential offeror with an unfair competitive advantage in the Flight Dynamics Support Services (FDSS) procurement unless mitigated or neutralized.

To neutralize this identified OCI, USA has submitted to the Contracting Officer an OCI plan that will among other things establish a firewall between its employees that have access to the LRO information and its employees that will be working on its proposal for the FDSS procurement. The NASA Contracting Officer, and in consultation with the Office of Chief Counsel, has reviewed the USA OCI Plan and found that it meets the NASA OCI criteria contained in the Access to Sensitive Information clause, NFS1852.237-72.  

Question 58

L.16 (1), List of Acronyms: Since this is a page-limited proposal, will the government allow offerors to use only the acronym in the proposal text, or will you require a first use definition of the acronym?

If the Offeror has defined an acronym in the List of Acronyms, a first use definition is not required in the proposal text.

Question 59

L.18(a) INFORMATION FROM THE OFFEROR: Are significant subcontractors permitted to submit past performance information that is considered company-private in a sealed package to the government?
Significant subcontractors are permitted to submit past performance information that is considered company-private in a sealed package to the Government; however, this does not circumvent the overall Past Performance Volume page limitations.
